GREAT LAKES GREAT LIBRARIES CONFERENCE PROGRAM AND ABSTRACTS

May 16-19, 2017

University of Wisconsin–Madison

Madison, Wisconsin

Hosted by Anne Moser, UW-Madison

and Alisun DeKock, Shedd Aquarium

27TH ANNUAL SAIL MEETING



May 16, 2017

Dear SAIL members and esteemed guests,

On behalf of the Aquatic Sciences Center at the University of Wisconsin-Madison and the Shedd Aquarium, it is our distinct pleasure to welcome you to Madison, Wisconsin, and to our campus for the 27th annual SAIL Regional Conference, **Great Lakes, Great Libraries**.

The theme of our conference is a GREAT one. The fresh water of the Great Lakes is a vital and irreplaceable resource for many states and provinces – 21% of the fresh water in the world is found within these water bodies. The Great Lakes play key roles around the watershed both locally and globally. They provide the foundation for many regional economies and bring recreation and tourism opportunities to the 50 million people that live and work around the lakes. The lakes are a point of great pride for residents of the "North Coast."

The libraries that compose our SAIL membership are also vital and irreplaceable resources for our scholars, researchers and communities. The work we do, the collections we manage and the innovative services we provide are indeed a point of pride.

At SAIL 2017, we know you will hear GREAT examples of how your role as librarian and the collections and services your libraries provide are key to the success of your institution. We hope you learn a bit about the incredible jewel that is <u>your</u> Great Lakes and a bit about research happening in our local Madison area, the birthplace of the science of limnology, and experience water through the eyes of a local artist.

Finally, we hope the conversations and learning will continue throughout the week beyond our formal sessions to the social hours and networking that are well-loved SAIL traditions. It is our hope that you return to your home institutions refreshed and revitalized, with new appreciation for the jewels of the Midwest.

We are here for you – please let us know if you need any help or information to make your stay more enjoyable. And please be sure to leave some time for the Memorial Union Terrace – it is a very special place in Madison, especially in May.

With warm regards,

Mulle

Anne Moser and Alisun DeKock

GREAT LAKES GREAT LIBRARIES CONFERENCE PROGRAM AND ABSTRACTS

27TH ANNUAL SAIL MEETING

Table of Contents

Welcome	
Acknowledgements	2
Program Schedule	3-5
Guest Speakers	6
Presentation Abstracts	7-11
Attendees	12
SAIL Business Meeting Agenda	13
2016 SAIL Business Meeting Minutes	14-19
SAIL Overview 2017	20
SAIL Representatives, Past and Present	21
Friday Outing Information	22
UW-Madison Campus Map	23
Area Information	24-25

Acknowledgements

A big thank you to everyone who helped make this year's conference a success. We especially wish to thank the SAIL members who lent us a hand this year - their collective wisdom about planning and running a conference has been invaluable.

Kay Garsnett Jaime Goldman Kristen LaBonte Eleanor Uhlinger

Our guest speakers: Sarah FitzSimons, David Hart, Garrett Johnson and Jake Walsh

Anne wishes to thanks Aquatic Sciences Center staff who provided their expertise.

Jim Hurley and David Hart for their support	Sigrid Peterson
Yael Gen	Elizabeth White
Julia Noordyk	

Alisun would like to thank Garrett Johnson for sharing Shedd's amazing work and for making the trip north to his alma mater.

This year's SAIL conference would not have succeeded without the support of the following partners. Thank you for your generous contributions.

DEMCO	WT Cox
ProQuest	Wisconsin TechSearch
Springer Nature	Shedd Aquarium
UW Press	Wisconsin Sea Grant

And because it takes a village to put on a conference, there are many others that lent a helping hand especially J. Leigh Garcia, MFA candidate, for screen printing our swag bags.

See you in 2018!

-Anne Moser and Alisun DeKock

Program Schedule

May 16, Tuesday

4:00-5:30 PM	Early Registration at Lowell Center Location: Lowell Center Hotel, 610 Langdon St., Main Lobby
6:00-8:00 PM	BBQ at the Wisconsin Water Library - Goodnight Hall, 2nd Floor Sponsored by Wisconsin TechSearch & UW Press Presentation: Integrated Assessment and Lake Michigan Water Levels Guest speaker: David Hart Location: Wisconsin Water Library, Goodnight Hall, 1975 Willow Dr.

Walk 1.4 miles along Howard Temin Lakeshore Path (see Campus Map page) or take a free bus ride (No. 80 bus) that you can pick up in front of Memorial Union. Ask bus driver to drop you off at De Jope Residence Hall.

May 17, Wednesday

6:30-8:30 AM	Complimentary breakfast buffet at hotel Location: Lowell Center Hotel
8:00- 5:00 AM	Conference Day One Location: Pyle Center, 702 Langdon St (room number posted in lobby of Pyle)
8:00-9:00 AM	Open Registration at Pyle Center
9:00-9:30 AM	Welcome Address & Conference Announcements
9:30-9:45 AM	Trivia part 1
9:45-10:45 AM	All Aboard for Story Telling, What Story Do You Have? Liz DeHart, The University of Texas Marine Science Institute, Marine Science Library; Joyce Shaw, Gulf Coast Research Laboratory, Gunter Library; Elizabeth Winiarz, University of Massachusetts, Dartmouth, Library
10:45-11:00 AM	Break Sponsored by Demco
11:00-11:45 AM	Still a eutrophic lake – studying long-term change in Madison's Lake Mendota Jake Walsh, Center for Limnology at University of Wisconsin-Madison
11:45-12:00 PM	Springer Nature Presentation Nicole Ameduri and Gretel D. Webster, Springer Nature
12:00-1:15 PM	Catered Lunch Sponsored by Springer

1:15-2:30 PM	State of the Union – All SAIL Libraries
2:30-2:45 PM	Trivia part 2
2:45-3:30 PM	Recent Work: Water Books Sarah FitzSimons, Dept. of Art, UW-Madison
3:30-3:45 PM	Break Sponsored by Demco
3:45-4:15 PM	The Evolving Marine Librarian David Baca, Texas A&M University at Galveston, Jack K. Williams Library
4:15-5:00 PM	Giving a DAM: how to start your search for Digital Asset Management Solutions Alisun DeKock, Shedd Aquarium Library
5:00-5:15 PM	Group Photo
5:15 PM	Free evening, dinner on own

May 18, Thursday

6:30-8:30 AM	Complimentary breakfast buffet at hotel Location: Lowell Center Hotel
9:00- 4:00 AM	Conference Day Two Location: Pyle Center
9:00-9:30 AM	Fishy Business: Fisheries Information in the United States Serial Set Mary J. Markland, Hatfield Marine Science Center
9:30-9:45 AM	Trivia part 3
9:45-10:45 AM	SAIL Business Meeting
10:45-11:00 AM	Break Sponsored by Demco
11:00-11:30 AM	Conservation efforts by the Shedd Aquarium Garrett Johnson, Great Lakes Stewardship Specialist, Shedd Aquarium
11:30-12:15 PM	ProQuest Presentation Kristin Culp, ProQuest

12:15-1:15 PM	Catered Lunch Sponsored by WT Cox
1:15-2:00 PM	How to survive drowning in a sea of projects using Asana as your lifesaver Keri Baker & Jaime Goldman, Oceanographic Campus Library, Nova Southeastern University, FL
2:00-2:15 PM	Trivia part 4
2:15-2:45 PM	Sharing Science: communication skills for scientists to build public trust Joyce M. Shaw, Gulf Coast Research Laboratory, MS
2:45-3:00 PM	UW Press Presentation Gwen Walker, UW Press
3:00-3:15PM	Break Sponsored by Demco
3:15-3:30 PM	The International Oceanographic Data and Information Exchange (IODE) David Baca, Texas A&M University at Galveston, Jack K. Williams Library
3:30 - 4:00 PM	A Marine & Atmospheric Science Research Analysis using Web of Science Angela Clark-Hughes, Rosenstiel School of Marine & Atmospheric Science Library, Miami, FL.
4:00-4:30 PM	Break for recombobulation
4:30-6:00 PM	Tour of State Capitol Building 2 E Main St, Madison, WI 53703 Meet in hotel lobby. Walk together to Square.
6:00-8:00 PM	Banquet Dinner at the Coopers Tavern Coopers Tavern 20 W. Mifflin St. Madison, WI 608.256.1600 Directly across from Capitol Building Sponsored by ProQuest
May 19, Friday	
6:30-8:30 AM	Complimentary breakfast buffet at hotel Location: Lowell Center
8:30 AM	Aldo Leopold Center Tour with lunch & possible visit to International Crane Foundation, time permitting. Meet in front of the Lowell Center Hotel at 8:30am sharp for departure.
5:00 PM	End of 27th Annual SAIL Conference

Guest Speakers



Sarah FitzSimons is a visual artist and assistant professor of sculpture at UW-Madison since 2011. Her work has been exhibited nationally and internationally, including a recent piece sited on Lake Michigan and developed for the 2015 Chicago Architecture Biennial. She's the recipient of an Efroymson Contemporary Art Fellowship, (Indianapolis, IN 2013); Research Grants from University of Wisconsin-Madison; and a Fast Track Grant from the Ohio Arts Council (2010). During the past decade, FitzSimons has been awarded residencies at the MacDowell Colony (Peterborough, NH); Djerassi Foundation (Woodside, CA); Walden Art Foundation

(Mando, Denmark); I-Park (East Haddam, CT); Vermont Studio Center (Johnson, VT); and Waldkunstpfad (Darmstadt, Germany). She received her BA and BFA from Ohio University, and her MFA from the University of California, Los Angeles.



David Hart is a senior scientist with the University of Wisconsin Aquatic Sciences Center and serves as the assistant director for extension at the University of Wisconsin Sea Grant Institute. He directs a staff of outreach specialists who extend coastal science throughout Wisconsin, the Great Lakes region and beyond. David's research occurs at the intersection of geographic information science, urban planning and coastal management. He has developed and tested methods for discovery, acquisition, integration and analysis of local geospatial data for use in decision-making about natural resource management issues at a regional scale.



Garrett Johnson is the stewardship specialist for the Great Lakes department at the John G. Shedd Aquarium and leads the Great Lakes Action Days public outreach program. Some of the Shedd's Great Lakes public programming includes beach cleanups, amphibian habitat restoration, invasive species removal and data collection through citizen science projects. He holds a B.S. in evolutionary biology and environmental studies from UW – Madison and an M.P.A. in Public Affairs from La Follette School of Public Affairs.



Jake Walsh is a freshwater ecologist working as a postdoctoral researcher at the UW - Madison Center for Limnology. Jake completed his undergraduate degree in Biology at Hamline University (St. Paul, MN) and his doctoral work at UW Madison. Jake's work has focused on the ecological and economic impacts of the invasive spiny water flea in Lake Mendota, highlighting the extreme costs associated with degraded water quality due to invasion. Jake has been motivated by the intersection between the ecology of lakes and the people who care about them, making aquatic invasive

species a perfect sandbox to explore and teach about the natural world and our place in it.

Presentation Abstracts

(In order of presentation)

Integrated Assessment and Lake Michigan Water Levels

David Hart, Senior Scientist, University of Wisconsin Aquatic Sciences Center and Assistant Director for Extension, University of Wisconsin Sea Grant Institute

Wisconsin Sea Grant is leading an integrated assessment of changing Lake Michigan water levels and their impacts on coastal bluffs and beaches between Shorewood and Port Washington in southeastern Wisconsin. Lake Michigan water levels were below the long-term average from 1999 to 2014, but began to rise, and rise rapidly, from record low water levels in January 2013. The presentation shares how the integrated assessment is taking into account this variability of Great Lakes water levels, how those levels affect the stability of coastal bluffs and beaches, and the range of response options available to address the issue.

All Aboard for Story Telling, What Story Do You Have?

Liz DeHart, Marine Science Librarian, Marine Science Library, The University of Texas Marine Science Institute; **Joyce Shaw**, Head Librarian and Professor, Gunter Library, Gulf Coast Research Laboratory; **Elizabeth Winiarz**, Science Librarian, University of Massachusetts

Libraries, museums and cultural institutions have many interesting and historic stories to tell, especially stemming from their geographic locations. As librarians, we are fortunate to be surrounded by a wealth of information and archival history, from research labs to fishing villages, whether science-related or not. Each of these rich narratives are important memoirs, sharing some aspect of life experiences and sometimes in a fun way. The presentation will be a four-person panel providing unique content, resources and stories from each of our institutions or region. What story do you have?

Liz DeHart *The Lazarette Gazette* (Laz Gaz) was an informal newsletter of the University of Texas Marine Science Institute, which began in 1992 and ended in 1999. Each of the issues has a fun, whimsical masthead with a staff caricature, group of people or an illustration of general interest. *Egabrag Wocs* (Scow Garbage spelled backwards), was the earlier version, short-lived and lasted from 1989 until the publication of the *Laz Gaz*.

The contents for these brief informational reads depended largely on staff members contributing various news, including their research and expeditions. The newsletter served as a means for the Marine Science Institute to share things of interest and definitely in a fun way for everyone. All of the issues are now digitized and ingested into the Texas ScholarWorks digital repository of the University of Texas Libraries.

Joyce Shaw *Dopeia* was a humor, satire of science publication produced by members of the American Society of Ichthyologists and Herpetologists for about a 50-year period, 1940-1990. Contributions included works such as "Charles 'd'Tuna" (1990) writing about a new species of fish from Charleston Harbor, South Carolina (the "fish" is actually a fishing lure shaped like a fish) and Ima Big Snoop (1966) "The sex-life of the soft-lipped gourami." *Dopeia* also included cartoons, poetry, minutes of meetings, and tables of contents with titles of articles nowhere to be found in the issue in hand. Gunter Library is home to 17 issues of this classic humor work which shows an irreverent and not-so-serious side of science.

Elizabeth Winiarz Located in New Bedford, the nation's most valuable fishing port, the New Bedford Fishing Heritage Center is dedicated to preserving and presenting the story of the fishing industry past, present and future through exhibits, programs and archives. This presentation will take you through a sampling of the oral histories, online exhibits and other treasures made available through this rich resource.

Still a eutrophic lake - studying long-term change in Madison's Lake Mendota

Jake Walsh, Center for Limnology, University of Wisconsin-Madison

As the birthplace of limnology, Lake Mendota is often coined the most researched lake in the world. However, as a lake in the agricultural Midwest, Lake Mendota has been one of the key sites used to study how human land use and land management impacts freshwater. Over the past two centuries, Lake Mendota has been shaped by eutrophication from increasing human waste and agricultural pollution, a changing climate, and invasive species in addition to efforts to improve its water quality. Through these changes, Lake Mendota continues to inform our research and provide valuable information regarding how lakes might change in a rapidly changing planet. Jake will discuss the history of research on Madison's Lake Mendota.

Recent Work: Water Books

Sarah FitzSimons, Department of Art, University of Wisconsin-Madison

Sarah FitzSimons will discuss her creative work and research as a visual artist, and focus on her interest in *water* as material, subject, and metaphor. Her projects typically involve sculpture that interacts with and derives meaning from its surroundings. Much of her creative work also aims to extend beyond the bubble of the "small, nearby and short-term," and seeks to connect our constructed culture and daily lives with the wider patterns of nature.

The Evolving Marine Librarian

Dr. David Baca, Texas A&M University at Galveston, Jack K. Williams Library

Libraries, and librarians, always face enormous change. We are overwhelmed by the amount of work we have to do, our budgets fail to keep up with needed resources and the amount of information we have to manage grows exponentially every year. Globally libraries are closing and science is under stress. New librarians and information managers are not going to be called librarians, they won't have a library degree, they will be young, inexperienced and solo professionals, but they will be connected, involved and globally focused.

These libraries, the people that staff them, and upcoming librarians will need skills far beyond traditional learning. We are already pretty good at creating and maintaining the tools, or "what." What kinds of skills are we going to need for the "how?" We must evolve our social, advocacy and marketing skills. We have to explore other fields and professions and bring those ideas into our world. And we can't be afraid to steal, from those other professions and from each other.

Giving a DAM: how to start your search for Digital Asset Management Solutions

Alisun DeKock, Shedd Aquarium Library and Archives

In 2016, the Shedd Aquarium embarked on a journey of self-discovery...of our digital assets. This presentation will share Shedd's first two stages of our process of finding a Digital Asset Management solution, including inventory, interviews, and a lot of inner dialogue.

Alisun DeKock has been the solo librarian and lone arranger for Chicago's John G. Shedd Aquarium since 2007. Her early career work in law libraries and later managing the volunteer program for the Adler Planetarium formed her passion for information management within cultural institutions. She received her MLIS from the University of Illinois. She is also the co-host of this conference, but Anne did most of the work.

Fishy Business: Fisheries Information in the United States Serial Set

Mary J. Markland, Hatfield Marine Science Center

The U.S. Serial Set is a bound series of over 14,000 volumes that contains within it nearly all of the hundreds of thousands of numbered congressional reports and documents published since 1817. While most people use it as a primary source for American history and Congressional reports, its contents range from agricultural yearbooks (aquaculture!), foreign relations (treaties!), geological surveys and a treasure trove of historical data about the United States' fisheries. You can also find historical reports from explorations in the United States and around the world. From the Annual Reports of the Fish Commission to Admiral Perry's Expedition to Japan, you can find lists of species, temperatures, hatcheries, maps and beautiful artwork capturing the animals, people and landscapes of the region.

Mary Markland is the department head for the Guin Library at the Hatfield Marine Science Center/Oregon State University in Newport, Oregon. Prior to this position, she was the southeast clinical campus librarian for the University of North Dakota School of Medicine in Fargo, ND. She has over 25 years of experience in science and medical libraries. Her undergraduate degree is in biology with a French minor from Iowa State University. Her MA in library and information studies is from the University of Wisconsin – Madison.

Conservation efforts by the Shedd Aquarium

Garrett Johnson, Shedd Aquarium

Connecting conservation, science, and advocacy, Shedd aims to create a robust stewardship community in the Chicagoland area. Garrett Johnson will present on some of the conservation work Shedd is performing in the Great Lakes including amphibian habitat restoration and monitoring, reducing the usage of single-use plastics, and connecting youth to nature.

How to survive drowning in a sea of projects using Asana as your lifesaver

Keri Baker & Jaime Goldman, Oceanographic Campus Library, Nova Southeastern University, FL

Are you drowning and struggling to stay afloat while navigating all of the moving pieces in a sea of projects? Asana can help you go from sinking to swimming! Asana is a web-based project management tool that the NSU Oceanographic Campus Library has adopted in order to manage the library more effectively. Asana creates task-based projects that hold project teammates accountable for their work, minimizes email, and streamlines meetings. Learn what Asana is, the various ways to use it, and how the Oceanographic Campus Library is changing the way they do business.

Keri Baker is a librarian II at the Nova Southeastern University Oceanographic Campus Library, where she has been for the past 4 years. She is the point person for scholarly output in NSU's Institutional Repository, NSUWorks, for all of Halmos College of Natural Science and Oceanography.

Jaime Goldman is the head librarian (librarian III) at Nova Southeastern University's Oceanographic Campus (OC) Library. Jaime has worked with the NSU Libraries for over 15 years and enjoys being able to combine her marine and library science education and experience in her work at the OC Library. Jaime has a B.S. in Marine Science and Biology, with a minor in Chemistry from Coastal Carolina University; a M.S. in marine biology and coastal zone management from NSU; and a M.S. in library and information studies, with a concentration in leadership, management, and reference services from Florida State University.

Sharing Science: communication skills for scientists to build public trust

Joyce Shaw, Head Librarian and Professor, Gunter Library, Gulf Coast Research Laboratory;

In April 2016, the University of Southern Mississippi (USM) Libraries, the College of Science and Technology, and the USM Speaking Center sponsored a workshop and practicum called Sharing Science. Funded by a grant, "Implementing the Sharing Science Workshop & Practicum" and created by the Museum of Science in Boston, the purpose of the program was to provide graduate students and early career scientists with training and practical experience in engaging with the public to communicate about scientific topics. Participants attended a three-hour workshop developed from the NISE Network and presented by three USM communication studies graduate students. Following the workshop, participants engaged in a two-hour practicum experience with high school students at USM for the "Mississippi Science Olympiad." In February 2017, Sharing Science 2.0 Workshop and Practicum were held over two days in conjunction with the "Hurricane Bowl," an annual regional high school marine sciences competition hosted by the GCRL Marine Education Center. Sharing Science 2.0 was supported in part by funding from Mississippi-Alabama Sea Grant Consortium. Sharing Science literacy in the community by providing opportunities for graduate students and early career scientists to improve their speaking skills.

Joyce M. Shaw (MA, MLIS) is the head of Gunter Library at the Gulf Coast Research Laboratory and a professor in University Libraries at the University of Southern Mississippi. She is a past SAIL representative to the IAMSLIC Executive Board and is a past chair of the Special Libraries Section of the Mississippi Library Association. She has hosted the annual SAIL Conference twice, the second time in 2006 only seven months following Hurricane Katrina. Since August 2011, she has managed and hosted the Gulf Coast Research Laboratory Science Cafe.

The International Oceanographic Data and Information Exchange (IODE)

Dr. David Baca, Texas A&M University at Galveston, Jack K. Williams Library

Recently the International Oceanographic Data and Exchange program of UNESCO reorganized. The focus is now on spreading membership and data creation out to individual institutions rather than through a national center. While oceanographic data is critical to the organization, information management has created such notable products as OceanTeacher. IODE is exploring ways to make information management a larger part of the organization that focuses on those aspects that go beyond the creation of data. IAMSLIC has been a partner in this process for several years. IODE will be reformatting the GE-MIM group to focus on new ways to promote information management.

Dr. David Baca is director of the Library and Learning Commons at Texas A&M University at Galveston. His background is engineering, and he has an MLS from the University of Texas at Austin and a PhD from Texas A&M University. He is an active member of ALA, ACRL and the Texas Library Association. He is a member of SAIL and is President-Elect of IAMSLIC for the 2017-18 year.

A Marine & Atmospheric Science Research Analysis using Web of Science

Angela Clark-Hughes, Rosenstiel School of Marine & Atmospheric Science Library, Miami, FL.

The aim of this study was to perform a bibliometric analysis of the publications generated and referenced by the faculty, graduate students, and research staff of the Rosenstiel School of Marine and Atmospheric Science (RSMAS), at the University of Miami over the last five years. Using publication information retrieved from the Web of Science (WoS) Core Collection database for the years 2012 to 2016, several indicators, e.g., top sources, main contributors, research trends, Altmetrics, collaborative efforts, resources utilized, etc., were identified and will be discussed in this overview of scholarly output.

Angela Clark-Hughes is a librarian associate professor and the head librarian of the Rosenstiel School of Marine and Atmospheric Science (RSMAS) Library at the University of Miami. She is responsible for all access and informational services; collection management and development, as well as maintenance and processing of RSMAS' special collections and archives. She is also responsible for research consultations and instructional services for students, research staff, and faculty; and she currently co-teaches a graduate level course on data management in a research environment. Angela holds a BS in psychology from Georgia State University, and a MLIS from Simmons College in Boston, Massachusetts. She is a member of Beta Phi Mu, Beta Beta chapter, a long-time member of SAIL, the current chair of the IAMSLIC Bylaws Committee (2015-2017), and a member of the Society of American Archivists (SAA).

Attendees

AMEDURI, NICOLE Springer Nature New York, New York nicole.ameduri@springernature.com

BACA, DAVID Texas A&M University at Galveston Galveston, TX <u>bacad@tamug.edu</u>

BAKER, KERI Nova Southeastern University Dania Beach, FL kbaker1@nova.edu

CLARK-HUGES, ANGELA University of Miami, Rosenstiel School of Marine and Atmospheric Science Library Miami, FL aclark@rsmas.miami.edu

COUGHLIN, CAROL College of William & Mary, Virginia Institute of Marine Science Gloucester Point, VA coughlin@vims.edu

CULP, KRISTIN ProQuest Sales Specialist Research Services kristin.culp@proquest.com

DEHART, LIZ University of Texas at Austin, Marine Science Library Austin, Texas I.dehart@austin.utexas.edu

DEKOCK, ALISUN John G. Shedd Aquarium Library Chicago, IL <u>adekock@sheddaquarium.org</u> EDSON, KATIE Michigan Tech University Dania Beach, Florida <u>keedson@mtu.edu</u> New member!

FITZSIMONS, SARAH W-Madison, Department of Art Madison, Wisconsin <u>sfitzsimons@wisc.edu</u>

GARSNETT, KAY Mote Marine Laboratory Sarasota, Florida kgarsnett@mote.org

GOLDMAN, JAIME Nova Southeastern University, Oceanographic Campus Library Dania Beach, FL hjaime@nova.edu

HART, DAVID UW-Madison, Sea Grant Institute Madison, Wisconsin <u>dhart@aqua.wisc.edu</u>

JOHNSON, GARRETT Shedd Aquarium, Great Lakes Chicago, Illinois gjohnson@sheddaquarium.org

MARKLAND, MARY Oregon State University Libraries & Press Corvallis, Oregon mary.markland@oregonstate.edu

MCCLUSKY, DUNCAN University of Georgia Tifton Campus Tifton Georgia Mcclusky@uga.edu

MOSER, ANNE UW-Madison, Wisconsin Water Library Madison, WI <u>akmoser@aqua.wisc.edu</u> PETERSON, SIGRID UW-Madison, Wisconsin Water Library Madison, Wisconsin <u>sepeterson2@wisc.edu</u>

RAYMOND, LISA Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution Woods Hole, MA Iraymond@whoi.edu

SHAW, JOYCE Gunter Library, Gulf Coast Research Laboratory Ocean Springs, MS joyce.shaw@usm.edu

WALKER, GWEN UW Press Madison, Wisconsin gcwalker@uwpress.wisc.edu

WALSH, JAKE UW-Madison, Center for Limnology Madison, Wisconsin jransom.walsh@gmail.com

WEBSTER, GRETEL Springer Nature New York, New York Gretel.webster@springer.com

WINIARZ, ELIZABETH Claire T. Carney Library, University of Massachusetts North Dartmouth, MA <u>ewiniarz@umassd.edu</u>

ZOOK, GENEVIEVE UW Law Library Madison, Wisconsin zook@wisc.edu

ZWICKER, SUSAN Smithsonian Libraries, National Museum of Natural History Washington, D.C. zwickers@si.edu

2017 SAIL Business Meeting Agenda

May 18, 2017

- 1. Approval of 2017 meeting agenda
- 2. Approval of 2016 meeting notes
- 3. SAIL Representative updates
 - a. General updates
 - b. Budget
- 4. Committee Reports:
 - a. Archivists & Editor
 - b. Aquatic Commons Board
 - c. By-Laws
 - d. Conference Committee
 - e. Conference Site Selection
 - f. Joint IODE-IAMSLIC
 - g. Membership Committee
 - h. Nominating Committee
 - i. RegOnline Committee
 - j. Resource Sharing Committee
 - k. Treasury Task Force
 - I. Website & Communications Committee
- 5. SAIL Conference(s)
 - a. Adding conference information to SAIL website (program PDFs & group photo)
 - b. Adding conference presentations to Aquatic Commons
 - c. Upcoming conferences:
 - i. 2018 SAIL Conference Sue Zwicker (Smithsonian SERC in Edgewater, MD)
 - ii. 2019 SAIL Conference to be held in conjunction with IAMSLIC in SAIL region in Port Aransas, TX, hosted by Liz DeHart
- 6. IAMSLIC Conference(s)
 - a. 2017, 43rd IAMSLIC Conference: Honolulu, Hawaii, USA, October 22-26, 2017
 - b. 2018, 44th IAMSLIC Conference: Entebbe, Uganda
 - c. 2019, 45th IAMSLIC Conference: Port Aransas, TX, USA, in conjunction with Annual SAIL Conference
- 7. Introduction of 2017-2019 SAIL rep
- 8. Adjourn

2016 SAIL Business Meeting Minutes

May 12, 2016 • 10am



<u>Attendees</u>: David Baca, Keri Baker, Angela Clark-Hughes, Carol Coughlin, Kristin Culp, Stanley Elswick, Anna Fiolek, Jaime Goldman, Kathleen Heil, Anne Moser, Linda Pikula, Laksamee Putnam, Steve Quillen, Lisa Raymond, Charlotte Schiaffo, Joyce Shaw, Albert (Skip) Theberge, Natalie Wiest, Elizabeth Winiarz, and Susan Zwicker.

- 1. Approval of 2016 meeting agenda (found on page 19 of SAIL 2016 program)
 - a. Motion: Joyce Shaw
 - **b.** 2nd: Keri Baker
 - c. Discussion: None
 - **d.** All in favor: all
 - e. Opposed: none
 - f. Approved
- 2. Approval of 2015 meeting notes (found on page 20 of SAIL 2016 program)
 - a. Motion: Keri Baker
 - **b.** 2nd: Joyce Shaw
 - c. Discussion: None
 - **d.** All in favor: all
 - e. Opposed: none
 - f. Approved

3. SAIL Representative updates

a. General updates

- i. **<u>SAIL Overview</u>**: Please see page 22 of the SAIL 2016 program.
- ii. SAIL Website: Over past year, we have been updating the SAIL webpage at: http://www.iamslic.org/sail/. This includes general content as well as the Join SAIL PDF brochure, which you can download and print to recruit new members; Conferences page updates, including group photos and PDFs of programs of each program; Online Resources page with links to valuable resources (please feel free to make any recommendations for adding new resources). Thank you to Kelsey Williamson, our webmistress, for volunteering to keep our website up to date for us.
- iii. <u>Membership Recruitment</u>: 2015-2017 SAIL Rep Jaime Goldman challenged all SAIL members to use the resources found on the updated SAIL webpage and on the Join SAIL tab to reach out to 1 librarian, information professional, or institution that they might be familiar with to help recruit more SAIL members. This is such a valuable group and resource that we want to share with other librarians out there. You can

reach out yourself, or contact Jaime Goldman (SAIL Rep) and Liz DeHart (Membership Chair) and they will reach out on your behalf.

- iv. <u>Membership Update</u>: As of May 2, 2016, SAIL has 58 members listed in the IAMSLIC directory. At the time of the IAMSLIC Census, we had 54 members, so this is our official count for our budget allocation (which is \$28/member). Thank you to Liz DeHart for her hard work as Membership Chair to solicit renewals and new members.
 - 1. New members include:
 - a. Geoffrey Timms Marine Resources Library, Charleston, SC
 - Liliana Andino Villar Centro de Investigaciones Pesqueras, Cuidad Haba, Cuba
 - c. Susan Zwicker Smithsonian, National Museum of Natural History, Washington, DC
 - 2. Questions/Discussion:
 - a. Joyce Shaw are they going to continue to extend the census deadline? This has benefited us in the past when it goes until April, which is closer to our annual SAIL conference.
 - According to the bylaws, this "snapshot" in time of our membership is supposed to occur on February 1st. IAMLSIC would like to try and get back to this deadline.
 - ii. We received \$28/SAIL member for our budget.
 - iii. We will be more proactive in the future to ensure that our outreach occurs earlier. Liz DeHart and Jaime Goldman did a big push in early 2016 to ensure our membership numbers were higher for the census.
 - iv. Remember to renew your IAMSLIC membership prior to February $\mathbf{1}^{st}$
 - b. Kathy Heil recruitment is difficult, no matter how many people you outreach to.
 - i. It is difficult, but worthwhile. We may only get a 5-10% response to our efforts. Liz and Jaime are here to help.
 - ii. It might just be a matter of communicating our worth to potential members or to those who have let their membership lapse.

b. Budget

i. As of May 2016 – this will be updated following the 2016 SAIL Conference and submitted to the IAMSLIC Exec Board for the yearly reports prior to the IAMSLIC conference in October 2016.

SAIL Budget – May 2016			
Year	Amount	Item	Notes
2014	\$466.02	Balance on 10/1/14	
	\$1,484.00	2015 Allocation	
		SAIL 2015 Conference Income - RegOnline (565.50 + 483.75 +	
2015	\$2,873.92	1530.75 + 293.92	
	\$493.50	SAIL 2015 Conference Income - Checks (278.50 + 35 + 75 + 105)	
	\$75.00	SAIL 2015 Conference Income - Sponsorship	

	\$511.64	TOTAL BALANCE 5/9/16	
	-\$250.00	SAIL 2016 Conference Travel Grant for SAIL Rep (Jaime Goldman	
	-\$150.00	SAIL 2016 Conference Travel Grant (Joyce Shaw)	
		SAIL 2016 Conference Expenses (Check to Kathy Heil)	TBD
2016		SAIL 2016 Conference Income (Sponsorship)	TBD
2010		SAIL 2016 Conference Income (RegOnline)	TBD
	-\$1,000.00	2016 SAIL Conference Seed Money - Chesapeake Bio. Lab (11/24/15)	
	\$1,512.00	(54 members @ \$28/each on census date in April 2016)	to 58 now!
	+	2016 Allocation	We are up
	-\$300.00	Goldman IAMSLIC 2015 Grant Reimbursement	
	-\$250.00	Gamble IAMSLIC 2015 Grant Reimbursement	
•	-\$250.00	Leonard IAMSLIC 2015 Grant Reimbursement	
-	-\$121.64	Baker SAIL 2015 Conference Grant	
-	-\$166.00	Gamble SAIL 2015 Conference Grant	
	-\$166.00	Leonard SAIL 2015 Conference Grant	
	-\$1,739.16	SAIL 2015 Conference Expense Check to Connor	
	-\$2,000.00	SAIL 2015 Conference Expense Check to Connor	

c. 2017-2019 SAIL Rep – Jaime Goldman's term as SAIL Rep will end at the close of the 2017 SAIL Conference. She is calling for nominations for the next SAIL rep. If any SAIL members are interested or would like to nominate a member, please let Jaime Goldman know and she will reach out to the nominee on your behalf.

i. Question regarding term limits: Not aware of any term limit rules, but we are following 1 term of 2 years on odd years from May to May.

4. Committee Reports

a. Archivists & Editor – Lisa Raymond

- i. Lisa Raymond: The IAMSLIC finding aid is in Archives Space. The way the links are now set up with IAMSLIC, they are automatically updated in Archives Space. We continue to archive emails from the listserv as well. If you want any photos included, send them to the listserv.
- ii. From Dorothy Barr: Proceedings from Rome are posted on the Woods Hole server (<u>http://darchive.mblwhoilibrary.org/handle/1912/7849</u>)

b. Aquatic Commons Board – Linda Pikula

- Linda Pikula: Shared highlights from the IODE host report shared with the Aquatic Commons board, as well as highlights from the Aquatic Commons board annual report with statistics. These reports should be available on the IAMSLIC website.
- Dave Baca: The \$2,000 Aquatic Commons received was used to purchase 5 Library Boxes (aka "knowledge in a box") and to provide 1 scholarship for significant contribution by a contributor. There are new members on the board, including Daryl Superio (editor for Asian submissions).
- iii. Some attendees asked for more information about Aquatic Commons. Jaime Goldman pulled up their webpage, and read the about us introduction found at:

<u>http://aquaticcommons.org/information.html</u>. For more information, please see FAQs page at: <u>http://aquaticcommons.org/faq.html</u>.

c. By-Laws – Angela Clark-Hughes

i. No updates from the by-laws committee. There are 2 new people on the committee: Liz DeHart and Jen Walton. All SAIL members will be cycling off at the same time (Angela, Liz, and Jen). Angela is hoping for vote/election at next IAMSLIC conference to address this. If any SAIL members are interested in serving on this committee, please let Angela know.

d. Conference Site Selection – from Kristen Metzger

i. Conference proposal from AFRIAMSLIC to host in 2018 – awaiting final decision.

e. Joint IODE-IAMSLIC GEMIM – Linda Pikula

- i. Please see the IAMSLIC website for reports. Linda reported at the last IAMSLIC meeting on the collaborative activities over the last 2 years. She will be updating this again for the next IAMSLIC conference in October 2016. Please see email from Steve Watkins sent on April 18, 2016, regarding this collaboration and IMAR (inventory of marine and aquatic repositories). Please take a look at this email and submit your repositories to IMAR.
- ii. Joint GEMIM Projects: OceanExpert membership directory working on updates. SAIL members are welcome to submit their information for an entry in that database. Linda mentioned that she has a list of 10 Cuban librarians that she would like to ensure are added to OceanExpert. Jaime Goldman asked Linda to send the list of names so that we can recruit them for IAMSLIC/SAIL.
- iii. Jaime Goldman hosted an OceanTeacher Global Academy (OTGA) course in November 2015 on Marine Research Data Management. Stay tuned for more trainings in the future. This is part of the joint GEMIM MOU with the IODE and IAMSLIC. Thank you to all of the SAIL members that served as expert lecturers for this course.

f. Membership Committee – from Liz DeHart

- i. May 2nd, 2016: Liz DeHart is serving as the SAIL member on IAMSLIC's Membership Committee from 2015-2017. Liz continues to monitor the membership directory quite frequently. Please remember to check your information for any corrections, especially the link to your library. This will make it easier for updating SAIL's website for libraries: <u>http://www.iamslic.org/sail/sail-affiliated-libraries</u>. Liz has also contacted Michelle Bond in Jamaica for assistance in recruiting new members in the Caribbean area. To date, nothing yet, but she has spoken to 2 librarians. As of May 2, 2016 SAIL has 58 members listed in the IAMSLIC directory. New members for this year include:
 - 1. Geoffrey Timms Marine Resources Library, Charleston, SC
 - 2. Liliana Andino Villar Centro de Investigaciones Pesqueras, Cuidad Haba, Cuba
 - 3. Susan Zwicker Smithsonian, National Museum of Natural History, Washington, DC

g. Nominating Committee – from Michelle Leonard

- i. Nothing to report.
- h. RegOnline Committee from Alyson Gamble
 - In October 2015 Alyson attended the 2015 IAMSLIC Annual Meeting, where she presented the update for RegOnline at the Executive Board Meeting. Currently, there are three people on the RegOnline committee: Eleanor Uhlinger, Joe Wible, and Alyson. They designed, launched, and administered the registration for the annual meeting.

- For the SAIL 2016 Annual Conference, Alyson designed, launched, and administered the registration website. We had 20 registrants and generated \$2,450.05 in revenue.
 Registrants were fully responsible for the transaction fees. We had one cancellation, as the registrant's organization registered them after they had registered individually, and two incomplete registrations.
- iii. At this time, Alyson plans on assisting IAMSLIC with registration for the 2016 IAMSLIC Annual Meeting.

i. Treasury Task Force – Dave Baca

a. Nothing to report on the task force activities. Some improvements to general accounting, including a treasurer handbook, update to QuickBooks platform, and other initiatives.

j. Website & Communications Committee – Dave Baca/Anne Moser

- i. Dave Baca demoed the proposed new IAMSLIC website design from the committee (template designed by committee member Carolina Monti). It was well received by the SAIL members present at the conference. The website is hosted on the WordPress platform. The new design has the same functionality, but it is more modern, clean, and visual. They are looking for IAMSLIC member photos to use for visuals and backgrounds. Membership map will still be available, but not on the front page necessarily. This will also be shared at the 2016 IAMSLIC Meeting in October. Please send any ideas or suggestions to Dave Baca, especially related to social media, marketing, and membership recruitment.
- ii. There was a brief side discussion regarding social media and marketing via social media best practices. Keri Baker suggested that SAIL create a Social Media rep to IAMSLIC who can solicit posts from SAIL members and send to IAMSLIC to use in social media marketing. Jaime Goldman asked Dave Baca to bring this to the Website & Communications Committee.
- iii. Keri Baker suggested a yearly photography contest for IAMSLIC members to submit photos to the new website to be used or featured and rotated out. This would allow IAMSLIC members at a distance who may not be able to attend conferences to share information about their area or organization to participate from afar. Flickr was mentioned as a possible platform to store, organize, and share photos from Facebook and WordPress website.
- iv. Dave Baca will share the "I am IAMSLIC" video during the conference break following the business meeting. He is still working on this project.

5. SAIL Conference(s)

- a. 2017 SAIL Conference Presentation by host Anne Moser (Madison, WI UW-Madison, Wisconsin Water Library) May 16-19, 2017
- b. Call for 2018 SAIL Conference host location
 - i. Susan Zwicker expressed interest in hosting.
 - ii. Jaime Goldman will send out a call to listserv and supply an online application form to apply to host for future SAIL conference.
 - iii. There are guidelines for hosting conferences on the SAIL website and hosts get a lot of help from SAIL Member
- **c.** 2019 SAIL Conference to be held in conjunction with IAMSLIC in SAIL region in Port Aransas, TX, hosted by Liz DeHart

6. IAMSLIC Conference(s)

- a. 2016, 42nd IAMSLIC Conference Traditional Knowledge and Modern Information Practice: Mérida, Mexico, October 16-20, in conjunction with the Latin American Regional Group Meeting.
- b. 2017, 43rd IAMSLIC Conference: Honolulu, Hawaii, USA
- c. 2018, to be determined (tentative Africa)
- **d.** 2019, 45th IAMSLIC Conference: Port Aransas, TX, USA, in conjunction with Annual SAIL Conference (Liz DeHart host)

7. Updates to SAIL website

- a. Updates addressed earlier in meeting:
 - i. Brochure
 - ii. Information
 - iii. Resources
- **b.** Conference information (program PDFs & group photo)

8. Adjourn

- a. Jaime Goldman thanked our host Kathy Heil, our sponsors, and SAIL/IAMSLIC members who helped make the 2016 SAIL conference a great success (Kristen LaBonte, Liz DeHart, Natalie Wiest, Charlotte Schiaffo, Anne Moser, John Conover, Alyson Gamble, Lisa Raymond, and Kelsey Williamson).
- **b.** Motion: Joyce Shaw
- **c.** 2nd: Dave Baca
- **d.** Discussion: none
- e. All in favor: all
- f. Opposed: none
- g. Approved

2016 SAIL Business meeting adjourned at 11:00am.

SAIL 2017 Overview

Membership Status

As of April 25, 2017, SAIL has <u>54</u> members listed in the IAMSLIC directory. New members include:

- Helen H. Cummings University of Maryland, Chesapeake Biological Laboratory, Solomons, MD
- Robin Grunwald Florida Fish & Wildlife Research Institute, Research Information Center
- Kay Garsnett Arthur Vining Davis Library and Archives, Mote Marine Laboratory

SAIL Activities

Members attending and/or presenting at the 42nd IAMSLIC CONFERENCE, Mérida, Mexico, October 16-20, 2016: David Baca, Angela Clark-Hughes, Jaime Goldman, Linda Pikula.

Other SAIL Activities

Kelsey Williamson: SAIL Webmaster <u>http://www.iamslic.org/sail/</u> Duncan McClusky: SAIL Listserv

SAIL Members on the IAMSLIC EXECUTIVE BOARD

Jaime Goldman, SAIL Representative (2015-2017) David Baca, IAMSLIC President-Elect (2017-2018)

SAIL Members on IAMSLIC COMMITTEES and TASK FORCE

Archivists & Editor Lisa Raymond, Archivist Dorothy Barr, Proceedings Editor

Aquatic Commons Board Linda Pikula, IODE Representative

By-Laws Angela Clark-Hughes, **Chair** (2015-2017, 2nd term) Liz DeHart (2015-2017)

Conference Site Selection

Keri Baker, **Chair** (2016-2017) Kristen Metzger (2016-2018, 2nd term) Joint IODE-IAMSLIC GEMIM Linda Pikula, Leader Michelle Leonard

Membership Committee Liz DeHart (2015-2017)

Nominating Committee Michelle Leonard (2016-2018, 2nd term)

Treasury Task Force Dave Baca, Chair

Website & Communications Committee Anne Moser, Chair (2015-2017) Dorothy Barr, Conference Proceedings Editor & WHOAS Liaison

SAIL Representatives, Past and Present

Jaime Goldman 2015-2017

Joyce Shaw 2013-2015 Carla Robinson 2011-2013 Jennifer Walton 2010-2011 Jan Heckman 2007-2010 Liz DeHart 2005-2007 Janine Devereaux 2004-2005 Evelyn Poole-Kober 2002-2004 Patti Marraro 1998-2002 Kathy Maxson 1995-1998 Stephanie Haas 1994-1995 Linda Pikula 1991-1994

Friday Outing Information

Meet in front of the Lowell Center at 8:30am sharp for departure. Included in the price of the field trip are transportation, admission to the Visitor's Center, tour and box lunch. If time permits and all attendees are able, we will try to stop at the International Crane Foundation on our return home. We will have an opportunity for a self-guided tour. We will return to Madison by 5pm.

The Aldo Leopold Foundation Visitor Center

Established in 1982 by the five children of Aldo Leopold and his wife Estella, the Foundation is a conservation organization that works to inspire an ethical relationship between people and nature through Leopold's legacy. This vision of a "land ethic" was not meant to be rigid or dogmatic; instead, Leopold intended for it to evolve continually through personal reflection, open dialogue, and people's actions on the land and in their communities. The land surrounding the Shack was the chief inspiration for Aldo Leopold's essays in *A Sand County Almanac* and continues to be a living classroom for exploring ecological relationships and conservation history. Come hear stories about the pioneering restoration work initiated by Leopold and his family, see the inside of the Shack, and stroll through restored prairie and woods along the Wisconsin River.

https://www.aldoleopold.org/

The International Crane Foundation

The International Crane Foundation is the only place on Earth where you can see all 15 of the world's crane species! Located in Baraboo amid the farmlands of southern Wisconsin, the International Crane Foundation's headquarters are just ten minutes from the Wisconsin Dells and surrounding Baraboo Hills. Visitors to the site can enjoy a guided tour of the world's cranes, take a hike on the nature trails, and browse nature themed items from around the world in the gift shop.

https://www.savingcranes.org/

UW Madison Campus Map



Interactive campus map: http://map.wisc.edu/

Things to Do in and Around Madison

Content provided by the Greater Madison Convention & Visitors Bureau.

Dane County Farmers' Market

The Dane County Farmers' Market is held every Saturday morning around the Capitol Square from April through November. It is the largest producer-only farmers' market in the U.S. and provides a chance to chat with more than 300 vendors who offer produce, flowers, cheeses, meats and more.

<u>Memorial Union Terrace</u> Grab a chair and soak up the sun on the historic Memorial Union Terrace. Throughout the years, the Terrace has remained a favorite spot for UW students, faculty, staff, and locals looking to enjoy a sunny day or beautiful evening in the summer, spring or fall. Open to the public.

<u>Henry Vilas Zoo</u>—Free admission, 365 days each year - The Henry Vilas Zoo is home to more than 800 animals and is one of the nation's only admission-free zoos. The Artic Passage exhibit features seals, polar bears and grizzly bears, and the zoo's carousel and train are also popular with kids of all ages.

Madison Museum of Contemporary Art (MMoCA)—Free admission and educational programs

This modern and contemporary art museum was designed by world-renowned architect Cesar Pelli and provides learning opportunities for audiences of all ages, including exhibit openings, film screenings and special events.

Wisconsin Historical Museum—Free admission; donations encouraged

This museum is full of information about the state's rich history: its heritage, cultures and shared experiences. Learn more about the Native Americans that inhabited Wisconsin 1,000 years ago, to modern-day residents that call Madison home.

Wisconsin Veterans Museum - Free admission

The Veterans Museum highlights important events in Wisconsin military history, from the Civil War to the present. Includes amazing artifacts exhibitions and a functional submarine periscope.

UW-Madison Geology Museum—Free admission

Browse the rocks and minerals exhibit, which features meteorites and a fluorescent display, or check out the dinosaur and fossil exhibits. Explore self-guided or via tours and storytelling times.

Chazen Museum of Art—Free admission

The Chazen Museum of Art is associated with the University of Wisconsin-Madison and houses touring and permanent collections from ancient times to the present day. Docent-led tours are available.

Olbrich Botanical Gardens—Free admission every day (except holidays)

Stroll through 16 acres of breathtaking outdoor display gardens featuring the ornate Thai Pavilion—the only one in North America and only one of four pavilions located outside Thailand.

Bolz Conservatory—Free admission on Wednesday and Saturday mornings

Step inside Olbrich Gardens' indoor garden space, a glass pyramid that reaches to 50 feet tall and is filled with exotic plants, bright flowers, a rushing waterfall and free-flying birds.

University of Wisconsin-Madison Arboretum—Free exploration year-round

Explore the Arboretum's 1,200 acres on your own or schedule a private guided tour. The Arboretum features gardens, ecological communities including woodlands, savannas, prairies, and wetlands, and 20 miles of trails designated for hiking, biking, skiing and snowshoeing.

<u>Otis Redding Memorial Plaque</u> – The King of the Soul Singers, Otis Redding, died in a plane crash at Lake Monona in 1967. A plaque is dedicated to him there.

Nearby Attractions

Spring Green and Frank Lloyd Wright's Taliesin - Just 20 miles west in nearby Spring Green—home to Taliesin, Wright's residence, studio, theater and farm—is the Riverview Spring Green Restaurant at the <u>Frank Lloyd</u> <u>Wright Visitor Center</u>. This inviting restaurant features windows that span the entire length of the building, giving guests an unforgettable view overlooking the scenic Wisconsin River.

Mt. Horeb - Drive through downtown Mount Horeb, and you'll find wooden trolls everywhere—for sale and for show. The streets are lined with life-sized trolls carved from the trunks of trees. But the historic downtown district also features antique shops, gourmet restaurants and museums, plus seasonal events like the <u>Thirsty</u> <u>Troll Brew Fest</u>.

New Glarus - This community calls itself "America's Little Switzerland" for a reason: Its Swiss founders settled there more than 150 years ago, and today chalet-style facades still dot the downtown. Explore the shops offering handmade sausages, European pastries and local cheeses. Stay to learn more about the culture at the Swiss Historical Village, an open-air museum that gives visitors a glimpse of Swiss pioneer life via 14 artifact-filled buildings.

27TH ANNUAL SAIL MEETING

